
Disclaimer: These agendas have been prepared to provide information regarding an upcoming meeting of the 
Common Council of the City of Marshall. This document does not claim to be complete and is subject to change. 
 

 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
Legislative and Ordinance Committee 

A g e n d a  
Tuesday, April 12, 2022 at 12:15 PM 

City Hall, 344 West Main Street 

  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Consider Approval of the Minutes for the March 1, 2022 Meeting. 

NEW BUSINESS 

2. Consider Amendments to Article 2-VI. 

3. Consider an Amendment to Chapter 22, Article 22-IV Mobile Food Units and Food Carts 

4.  Consider Amendments to Section 86-162 Yard Modification and 86-248 Outside Storage 

5. Consider Amendments to Section 70-21 Definitions, Section 86-50 Home occupations and businesses, and 

Section 86-51 Bed and breakfast. 

6. Consider Amendments to Section 86-96 Agricultural district and Section 86-230 Required number of spaces 

 

ADJOURN 

 

Page 1001



CITY OF MARSHALL 
COUNCIL LEGISLATIVE & ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

March 1, 2022 at 12:00 PM   
On Main, City Hall 

344 West Main Street 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    John DeCramer, Jim Lozinski, and Steven Meister (12:37 P.M.) 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  None 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Sharon Hanson, City Administrator; Dennis Simpson, City  
    Attorney, Jason Anderson, Director of Public Works/ City  
    Engineer; Jessie Dehn Assistant City Engineer; and Kyle Box, City 
    Clerk, Robert Byrnes, Mayor (Joined at 12:17 P.M., Excused at 
    12:37 P.M.) 
 
At 12:00 PM Chairman DeCramer called the meeting to order. 
 
Chairman DeCramer asked approval of the minutes from the December 7, 2021 meeting. 
Motion by Lozinski, Seconded by DeCramer to approve the minutes. All voted in favor. 
 
Chairman DeCramer asked for discussion on an Ordinance Amending Chapter 62 of the City 
Code establishing Sec. 62.11 - Access Management (Driveway Ordinance). 
 
Jason Anderson Director of Public Works/ City Engineer provided an overview of the 
proposed ordinance. City staff is proposing to establish a set of driveway regulations that 
more explicitly describes the requirements and limitations for driveways in various land uses. 
The proposed ordinance would apply to new properties or applications for modifying existing 
driveways. Applications to replace driveways, as they are currently, would be exempt from 
the requirements in the ordinance. 
 
The proposed ordinance describes the requirements for materials and geometrics (size, 
slope, etc.) for residential, commercial, and industrial-zoned properties. The ordinance also 
identifies an exemption process, should a property owner wish to install a driveway that does 
not conform to the requirements in the proposed ordinance. 
 
Staff believes that the proposed ordinance would provide clear direction to property owners 
regarding driveway installations. Limiting driveway width and spacing between driveways can 
improve safety by helping to reduce vehicle/pedestrian interaction area and by reducing and 
limiting street access/conflict points, help ensure good gutter drainage, reduce unnecessary 
storm water runoff, help ensure compliance with vegetative cover ordinance requirements, 
and help maintain character of a neighborhood. Establishment of driveway regulations are 
typical for many other communities in Minnesota. Staff can review requirements of other 
communities as needed. 
 
This item was presented to the Public Improvement/Transportation Committee at their 
meeting on January 25, 2022, with a recommendation from the Committee for approval of 
the driveway ordinance to the City Council. 
 
Member DeCramer commented on section 4 b, Commercial and Industrial-Zoned Properties  

Page 2Item 1. 002



All Commercial and Industrial properties will be granted one (1) curb cut access per parcel for 
driveway.  Staff will review that item before it is brought to the full council. 
 
DeCramer asked a clarifying question on the appeal process. There was a consensus from the 
committee to have the Planning Commission review the appeals first and then to the City 
Council with a recommendation. 
 
Member Lozinski asked a clarifying question on why the City requires driveways to be 
concrete. Director Anderson commented that concrete driveways are only required in the 
right of way. 
 
Member Lozinski requested the concrete and asphalt be added to the options in the 
introduction ordinance brought before the council. 
 
Motion by Lozinski, seconded by DeCramer to recommend that the Council introduce the 
Ordinance Amending Chapter 62 of the City Code establishing Sec. 62.11 - Access 
Management (Driveway Ordinance) at their March 8, 2022 meeting and call for public 
hearing to be held March 22, 2022. All voted in favor. 2-0 
 
Chairman DeCramer asked for a review of the 2020 Census Redistricting Data for the purpose 
of redistricting City Precincts and Wards. City Clerk Kyle Box provided the background 
information. 
 
Redistricting is the process of redrawing the boundaries of election districts to ensure that 
the people of each district are equally represented.  
 
Redistricting is done in the United States after the completion of Congressional 
reapportionment, which decides how many seats each state has in the 435 member House of 
Representatives. Reapportionment happens following the Decennial Census.  
 
In Minnesota, the state legislature has constitutional responsibility for redistricting 
Minnesota's Congressional districts, as well as Minnesota Senate and House districts, and 
Metropolitan Council districts. Local governments are responsible for redistricting other 
election districts:  
 

 County boards are responsible for redistricting county commissioner districts  

 City councils are responsible for redistricting city wards  

 School boards are responsible for redistricting board member districts  
 
In addition, during the redistricting time period, cities and townships will establish (or 
reestablish) their precinct boundaries as part of the redistricting process, as will counties that 
have unorganized territory.  
 
After review of our 2020 Census redistricting data, we believe that the accuracy of the Census 
Tract 3605, which overlaps with our Ward 1 voting district, is wrong. This tract encompasses 
SMSU and a large amount of rental housing that was unoccupied due to the timing of COVID-
19.  
 
Under Section 2.10 of our City Charter, The Council shall, by ordinance, provide for the 
establishment of wards, define, or change their boundaries, and increase or eliminate the 

Page 3Item 1. 003



number of wards in the City. No change, increase, or elimination shall be made within three 
(3) months prior to any election held in the City governmental offices. Within six (6) months 
following the official certification of the decennial census of the United States and the filing 
of the census list with the City, the Council shall, by ordinance, re-determine ward boundaries 
so as to make said wards as nearly equal in population as practical.  
 
It is staff’s opinion that with the current data provided by the Census Bureau, the City of 
Marshall will not need to redistrict its precincts or wards, even with the undercounted 
population count located in Ward 1.  
 
However, the results received from the 2020 will affect voting districts for Lyon County if the 
City of Marshall chooses to reestablish its currently voting districts.  
 
Staff have had meetings with Lyon County staff to discuss options to minimize the impact of 
redistricting by redrawing precinct and ward lines within Marshall.  
 
Three options will be presented to the Committee:  
Option 1: Reestablish the City of Marshall Precincts and Wards (No Changes)  
 
Option 2: Move 89 people from Ward 3 to Ward 1. This change will allow Lyon County to 
keep its current voting districts with minimal impact the City of Marshall voting districts.  
 
Option 3: Move 191 people from Ward 3 to Ward 1. This change will reestablish 
neighborhoods and make the Ward lines between Ward 3 and Ward 1 easier to identify. This 
change will allow Lyon County to keep its current voting districts with a slightly larger impact, 
compared to Option 2, to the City of Marshall voting districts. 
 
There was continued discussion by the Committee and staff. It was agreed upon by the 
Legislative and Ordinance Committee that our 2020 Census count in Ward 1, which is located 
in Census tract 3605 is undercounted and that the population continues to be accurately 
represented.  
 
Motion by Lozinski, Seconded by Meister to recommend that the City Council Reestablish the 
City of Marshall Precincts and Wards and Polling Locations. All voted in favor. 3-0 
 
At 1:07 PM motion Lozinski by, Seconded by Meister to adjourn. All voted in favor.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Kyle Box 
City Clerk 

Page 4Item 1. 004



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 12, 2022 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider Amendments to Article 2-VI. 

Background 

Information: 

The City Council has asked the Legislative and Ordinance Committee to review the current 

ordinance pertaining to membership to the City’s boards, commissions, bureaus, and 

authorities. Current membership requirements included living within the Marshall city limits 

with the exception of the MERIT Center Commission and Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion 

Commission. 

In your packet you will find the ordinance for each board, commission, bureau, and authority. 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

None 

Recommendations: That the Legislative and Ordinance Committee recommend amending the membership 

requirement to various boards, commissions, bureaus, and authorities. 

That the Legislative and Ordinance Committee repeal Article 2-VI, Division 2-VI-5 Hospital 

Board.  

 

Page 5Item 1. 005



ARTICLE 2-VI BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND AUTHORITIES 
DIVISION 2-VI-1 GENERALLY 
DIVISION 2-VI-2 AIRPORT COMMISSION 
DIVISION 2-VI-3 CABLE TELEVISION COMMISSION DIVISION 2-VI-4 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY DIVISION 2-VI-5 HOSPITAL 
BOARD 
DIVISION 2-VI-6 HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION DIVISION 
2-VI-7 LIBRARY BOARD 
DIVISION 2-VI-8 PLANNING COMMISSION DIVISION 2-VI-9 
POLICE ADVISORY BOARD DIVISION 2-VI-10 PUBLIC 
HOUSING COMMISSION 
DIVISION 2-VI-11 SENIOR CITIZENS CENTER COMMISSION 
DIVISION 2-VI-12 MINNESOTA EMERGENCY RESPONSE AND INDUSTRIAL TRAINING (MERIT) CENTER BOARD 

 

Charter reference(s)—Boards and commissions, § 2.02; municipal utilities commission, § 13.01. 
 
DIVISION 2-VI-1 GENERALLY 
Section 2-141 Application Of Article Provisions Section 2-
142 Purpose 
Section 2-143 Appointments And Terms For Members Section 2-
144 Election Of Officers 
Section 2-145 Qualifications And Compensation Section 2-
146 Meetings 
Section 2-147 Powers And Duties Section 2-
148 Limitations Of Power Section 2-149 
Funds 

 

Section 2-141 Application Of Article Provisions 
 
The provisions of this article shall apply to all boards, commissions, bureaus and authorities within the city 
except the city municipal utilities commission. 

 
(Code 1976, § 2.20(10); Ord. No. 718 2nd Series, 4-11-2017) 

 
Section 2-142 Purpose 

 
(a) Boards, commissions, bureaus and authorities shall serve as a vehicle for the participation of community 

citizens and as advisory bodies to the council. 

(b) Appointment procedure. All applicants for appointment shall complete an application form and have a 
chance to be interviewed by the mayor and council. The appointments shall not be made until there has 
been a publication in the paper opening up the appointment to applicants, and the applicants have been 
interviewed. 

(c) Term of appointment. No board or commission member shall be appointed to more than two full 
consecutive terms. Any person appointed to fill an unexpired term shall be deemed to be serving a 
complete term within the meaning of this section if there remains at the time of appointment more than 
50 percent of the unexpired portion of such term remaining. New appointees shall assume office on June 
1 and May 31 being the date of expiration of the term; provided, however, that all appointees to 
boards and commissions shall hold office until their successors are 

Page 6Item 1. 006

https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=ARTICLE_2-VI_BOARDS%2C_COMMISSIONS_AND_AUTHORITIES
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-1_GENERALLY
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-2_AIRPORT_COMMISSION
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-3_CABLE_TELEVISION_COMMISSION
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-4_ECONOMIC_DEVELOPMENT_AUTHORITY
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-4_ECONOMIC_DEVELOPMENT_AUTHORITY
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-5_HOSPITAL_BOARD
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-5_HOSPITAL_BOARD
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-6_HUMAN_RIGHTS_COMMISSION
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-7_LIBRARY_BOARD
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-7_LIBRARY_BOARD
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-8_PLANNING_COMMISSION
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-9_POLICE_ADVISORY_BOARD
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-9_POLICE_ADVISORY_BOARD
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-10_PUBLIC_HOUSING_COMMISSION
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-10_PUBLIC_HOUSING_COMMISSION
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-11_SENIOR_CITIZENS_CENTER_COMMISSION
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-12_MINNESOTA_EMERGENCY_RESPONSE_AND_INDUSTRIAL_TRAINING_(MERIT)_CENTER_BOARD
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-1_GENERALLY
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-141_Application_Of_Article_Provisions
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-142_Purpose
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-142_Purpose
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-143_Appointments_And_Terms_For_Members
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-144_Election_Of_Officers
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-144_Election_Of_Officers
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-145_Qualifications_And_Compensation
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-146_Meetings
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-146_Meetings
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-147_Powers_And_Duties
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-148_Limitations_Of_Power
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-148_Limitations_Of_Power
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-149_Funds
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-149_Funds
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-141_Application_Of_Article_Provisions
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-142_Purpose


appointed and qualified. All vacancies shall be filled in the same manner as for an expired term, but the 
appointment shall be for the unexpired term. 

(d) No appointed board or commission member shall be employed full-time, 3/4 time or part-time by the city 
(as defined in the personnel policy manual), except those who are members by virtue of their office. 
There cannot be a conflict of interest with the board, commission, bureau, or authority. 

 
All members to any board that are appointed after January 1, 2000, shall be at the date of appointment 
and at all times during the term of appointment a resident of the city. Any appointments made pursuant 
to the Joint Powers Agreement for the Lyon County Library, and the Joint Powers Agreement for the 
Marshall Community Service Department, shall be appointed and controlled by that agreement. The Joint 
Powers Agreements supercedesupersede this section. 

(e) Remuneration. All appointed board and commission members shall serve without remuneration but may 
be reimbursed for out of pocketout-of-pocket expenses occurred in the performance of the duties when 
such expenses have been authorized by the council before they have been incurred. 

(f) Removal. If a commission or board member misses three meetings within a year without being excused 
prior to the meeting, such member shall be removed therefrom at the end of the appointive year. Any 
board or commission member may be removed by the council for misfeasance, malfeasance, 
nonfeasance, or without cause by a majority vote by the city council. The removed persons position may 
be filled like any other vacancy. The removal process shall be without a hearing, and it shall not be 
necessary that the council establish cause for removal. 

 
(Code 1976, § 2.20(1)—(3), (6)—(8); Ord. No. 431, § 1, 3-6-2000; Ord. No. 716 2nd Series, § 1, 1-10- 
2017; Ord. No. 718 2nd Series, 4-11-2017) 

 
Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 718 2nd Series, adopted April 11, 2017, amended § 2-412 to read as set out herein. 
Previously § 2-412 was titled "Appointments and terms." 

 
Section 2-143 Appointments And Terms For Members 

 
(a) Appointments to all boards, commissions, bureaus and authorities shall be by the mayor and shall be 

confirmed by the council with the exception of the housing and redevelopment authority. 

(b) No board, commission, bureau or authority member shall be appointed to more than two full consecutive 
terms on any board, commission, bureau and authority, with the exception of the housing and 
redevelopment authority which shall have no term limits. Any person appointed to fill an unexpired term 
shall be deemed to be serving a complete term within the meaning of this section if there remains at the 
time of appointment more than 50 percent of the unexpired portion of such term remaining. All 
vacancies shall be filled in the same manner as for an expired term, but the appointment shall be for the 
unexpired term. 

(c) No board, commission, bureau or authority member shall serve on more than one board, commissions 
[commission], bureaus [bureau] or authorities [authority] at one time, with the exception of the charter 
commission. 

(d) A member cannot be reappointed to the same board, commission, bureau or authority for at least one 
year after the completion of two full consecutive terms on a board, commission, bureau or authority. 

(e) New full termfull-term appointees shall assume office on June 1 with May 31 being the date of expiration 
of the term; provided however, that all appointees to boards, commissions, bureaus or authorities shall 
hold office until their successors are appointed and qualified. The exception would be the following: 
community services advisory board term runs from March 1 through the last day of February; library 
board term runs from January 1 through December 31. 

Page 7Item 1. 007

https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-143_Appointments_And_Terms_For_Members


(f) All appointments shall be made for a term of three years with the following exceptions: 

(1) Economic development authority terms shall last six years. 

(2) Public housing commission terms shall last five years. 

 
(g) Appointments shall be staggered so that the terms of a minority of members on each board, commission, 

bureau or authority shall expire each year on May 31, the last day of February or December 31 as 
applicable. 

(h) The city administrator shall assign city staff in an administrative capacity to lead and assist with board, 
commission, bureau or authority meetings as deemed appropriate. 

(i) Any board, commission, bureau or authority member shall serve at the pleasure of the city council and 
may be removed by a majority vote of the council. 

(j) If a board, commission, bureau or authority member misses three meetings within a year without being 
excused prior to the meeting, such member may be removed. 

(k) No appointed board, commission, bureau or authority member shall be employed full-time, 3/4 time or 
part-time by the city (as defined in the personnel policy manual), except those who are members by their 
office. An appointed member cannot have a conflict of interest with the board, commission, bureau or 
authority, to which he or she is appointed. 

 
(Ord. No. 718 2nd Series, 4-11-2017) 

 
Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 718 2nd Series, adopted April 11, 2017, amended § 2-143 to read as set out herein. 
Former § 2-143 pertained "Officers", and was derived from Code 1976, § 2.30(9)). 

 
Section 2-144 Election Of Officers 

 
(a) All boards, commissions, bureaus and authorities shall have a chair, vice-chair and secretary. 

(b) The chair, vice-chair and secretary and any other necessary officers shall be elected from and by the 
board, commission, bureau or authority members at the first regular meeting of each term of service. 

 
(Ord. No. 718 2nd Series, 4-11-2017) 

 
Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 718 2nd Series, adopted April 11, 2017, amended § 2-144 to read as set out herein. 
Former § 2-144 pertained "Meetings", and was derived from Code 1976, § 2.20(5). 

 
Section 2-145 Qualifications And Compensation 

 
(a) All members to any board, commission, bureau, or authority must be a resident of the city with the 

exception of the MERIT Center Commission and Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion commission. 

(b) All appointed board, commission, bureau or authority members shall serve without compensation with 
the exception of the Economic Development Authority., but All board, commission, bureau or authority 
members may be reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses incurred in the performance of their duties. 

 
(Ord. No. 718 2nd series, 4-11-2017; Ord. No. 21-001, 1-26-2021) 

Section 2-146 Meetings 
 

(a) Each board, commission, bureau or authority shall hold its regular meeting at a time established and 
Page 8Item 1. 008

https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-144_Election_Of_Officers
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-145_Qualifications_And_Compensation
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-146_Meetings


approved by the board, commission, bureau or authority. Special meetings may be called by 

Page 9Item 1. 009



the chair as needed, following appropriate notice. 

(b) All boards, commissions, bureaus or authorities generally shall meet once a month, with the exception of 
the housing and redevelopment authority and policy advisory board which meet only on an as needed 
basis. 

(c) All boards, commissions, bureaus or authorities shall keep a public record of its findings, determinations, 
recommendations, minutes and plans. A copy of said minutes shall be provided to the council as soon as 
reasonable after the date of the meeting. 

 
(Ord. No. 718 2nd Series, 4-11-2017) 

 
Section 2-147 Powers And Duties 

 
(a) All boards, commissions, bureaus or authorities shall have the power and obligation to execute only 

those duties established by city charter or ordinance which regulates each specific board, commission 
bureau or authority; and shall include the following: 

(1) Adopt and amend procedures and bylaws which specify and define the duties and responsibilities 
of all members, officers and committee. 

(2) Adopt and amend procedures and bylaws not inconsistent with the provisions of this division, 
applicable administrative code or as provided by charter, ordinance, or statute; and as may be 
necessary for the proper execution and conduct of their business. 

(3) Develop and recommend to the council or review and/or disapprove of proposed changes 
pertaining to their area of expertise and namesake. 

(4) Request information from other departments in the city which relates to or is necessary for the 
completion of duties of any board, commission, bureau or authority. 

(5) Solicit the cooperation and expertise of agencies, organizations and individuals to gain 
knowledge, promote public interest and understanding, encourage safety, and enhance the 
overall quality of life in our region. 

 
(b) Each board, commission, bureau and authority shall execute the powers and duties granted to it by 

bylaws, resolution, ordinance, charter or statute, and those lawfully assigned to it by the council. 

 
(Ord. No. 718 2nd Series, 4-11-2017) 

 
Section 2-148 Limitations Of Power 

 
(a) Each board, commission, bureau and authority shall follow the budget process for city departments as 

provided by the city and as implemented by the mayor and council. 

(b) All official actions of each board, commission, bureau and authority must be consistent with the adopted 
comprehensive plan of the city and any official controls implementing the comprehensive plan. 

 
(Ord. No. 718 2nd Series, 4-11-2017) 

Section 2-149 Funds 
 

(a) The council shall, in its annual budget, make provisions for an appropriate sum of money as deemed 
proper and necessary to defray the expenses incurred as a result of conducting business, official activities 
and work on behalf of any board, commission, bureau and authority. Page 10Item 1. 010

https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-147_Powers_And_Duties
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-148_Limitations_Of_Power
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-149_Funds


(Ord. No. 718 2nd Series, 4-11-2017) 

DIVISION 2-VI-2 AIRPORT COMMISSION 
Section 2-161 Established Section 2-
162 Composition 
Section 2-163 Terms And Qualifications 
Section 2-164 Powers 

 

Section 2-161 Established 
 
An airport commission is hereby established. 

 
(Code 1976, § 2.25; Ord. No. 371 2nd series, § 1, 4-7-1997) 

 
Section 2-162 Composition 

 
The airport commission shall be composed of seven members. (Code 

1976, § 2.25; Ord. No. 371 2nd series, § 1, 4-7-1997) Section 2-163 

Terms And Qualifications 

All appointments thereto shall be made for a term of three years from and after the June 1 of the year of their 
respective appointments and shall be staggered so that the terms of two members shall expire each year on May 
31. No commissioner shall, during the term of his membership, hold any other office or position in the city 
government. The commission shall elect its chairman, vice-chairman and secretary from among the appointed 
members. 

(Code 1976, § 2.25(2)) 
 
Section 2-164 Powers 

 
The airport commission shall have power and shall be required to: 

 
(a) Develop and submit to the council for adoption a master plan for the physical development of the 

municipal airport and from time to time offer amendments, extensions and additions to such master plan 
which shall show the commission's recommendations for development of the municipal airport. 

(b) Make and recommend to the council an airport zoning plan for the protection of the airport and the 
airport users. 

(c) Submit annually to the council, not less than 90 days prior to the beginning of the budget year, a 
recommended budget including a list of capital improvements, which in the opinion of the airport 
commission are necessary or desirable to be constructed during the forthcoming year. 

(d) Promote public interest and understanding of the master plan and of the airport zoning and physical 
development of the municipal airport. 

(e) Meet no less than once each month and keep a public record of its resolutions, findings and 
determinations. 

(f) Cooperate and consult with the state department of aeronautics and with the Federal Aviation 
Administration in the development, maintenance and operation of the municipal airport. 

(g) Develop and submit to the council for adoption policies pertaining to the general management of the 
Page 11Item 1. 011

https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-2_AIRPORT_COMMISSION
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-161_Established
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-162_Composition
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-162_Composition
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-163_Terms_And_Qualifications
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-164_Powers
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-161_Established
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-162_Composition
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-163_Terms_And_Qualifications
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-163_Terms_And_Qualifications
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-164_Powers


airport and the use of airport facilities and to recommend rental fees and service rates for the use of the 
airport facilities. 

 
(Code 1976, § 2.25(2)) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 12Item 1. 012



DIVISION 2-VI-3 CABLE TELEVISION COMMISSION 
Section 2-181 Established 
Section 2-182 Number Of Members; Terms; Qualifications Section 2-
183 Purpose 
Section 2-184 Meetings 
Section 2-185 Powers And Duties 

 

Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 616 2nd series, § 1, adopted November 10, 2009, amended division 3 in its entirety to 
read as herein set out. Formerly, division 3, §§ 2-181—2-184 pertained to similar subject matter, and derived 
from the Code of 1976, §§ 2.28(1), (2), (4)—(6). 

 
Section 2-181 Established 

 
A cable television commission is hereby established. (Ord. 

No. 616 2nd series, § 1, 11-10-2009) 

Section 2-182 Number Of Members; Terms; Qualifications 
 
The cable television commission shall be composed of five members. The term of any member shall be for three 
years. Members of the cable television commission shall be appointed with due regard to their fitness for the 
efficient dispatch of the functions, powers and duties vested in and imposed upon the cable television 
commission. The cable television commission shall annually elect a chairman, vice- chairman and secretary from 
among the appointed members. 

(Ord. No. 616 2nd series, § 1, 11-10-2009) 

Section 2-183 Purpose 

 
The purpose of the cable television commission is to monitor the performance of the cable television 
franchisee(s) in executing the provisions of the respective franchise agreement(s). The cable television 
commission shall also perform such duties as may be delegated by future resolutions of the city council. The 
cable television commission may conduct periodic and on-going studies to determine the community's public 
access television needs as funds are authorized through the annual city budget. The results of these studies and 
recommendations on the development of revised or new policies shall be reported to the city council for 
consideration. The cable television commission shall enlist the cooperation of agencies, organizations and 
individuals in securing and originating programming on the local access channel. 

(Ord. No. 616 2nd series, § 1, 11-10-2009) 

Section 2-184 Meetings 

 
The cable television commission shall meet on a regular basis as they deem appropriate and necessary. Additional 
meetings may be called by the chairman or any two members of the cable television commission. 

 
(Ord. No. 616 2nd series, § 1, 11-10-2009) 

 
Section 2-185 Powers And Duties 

Page 13Item 1. 013

https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-3_CABLE_TELEVISION_COMMISSION
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-181_Established
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-182_Number_Of_Members%3B_Terms%3B_Qualifications
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-183_Purpose
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-183_Purpose
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-184_Meetings
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-185_Powers_And_Duties
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-181_Established
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-182_Number_Of_Members%3B_Terms%3B_Qualifications
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-183_Purpose
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-184_Meetings
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-185_Powers_And_Duties


The cable commission shall have power and shall be required to: 
 

(a) Develop and submit to the council an annual business plan for the ongoing management of the cable 
television commission and the city's public access television station, Studio One, and recording studio. 
The annual business plan will be submitted for approval to the city council not less than 90 days prior to 
the beginning of the upcoming budget year. The plan will include: 

(1) An updated master plan for the physical development of the public access television 
production facilities, Studio One, and recording studio. 

(2) An annual capital expenditure plan in support of the cable television commission's master plan. 

(3) An annual operating budget for the upcoming fiscal year. 

(4) A marketing plan for the upcoming year. 

(5) Staffing recommendations for the Studio One and recording studio operations in support of the 
business plan. 

(6) An annual review of the franchise fee agreements compliance and any recommended 
changes to the existing agreements. 

 
(b) The cable television commission shall be responsible for monitoring both the operating and capital 

budgets of the cable television commission and the city's public access television station(s). 

(c) The cable television commission shall be responsible for monitoring the requirements within the existing 
cable franchise agreements and recommending action to the city council on any items that are in 
violations of said terms or conditions. 

 
(Ord. No. 616 2nd series, § 1, 11-10-2009) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14Item 1. 014



DIVISION 2-VI-4 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Section 2-201 Established 
Section 2-202 Composition; Compensation 
Section 2-203 Officers And Meetings Section 2-
204 Staff 
Section 2-205 Functions 
Section 2-206 Limitations Of Power 

 

State law reference(s)—Economic development authorities, Minn. Stat. § 469.090 et seq. 

Section 2-201 Established 
 
An economic development authority to be known as the city economic development authority is hereby 
established. 

 
(Code 1976, § 2.27) 

 
State law reference(s)—Establishment of economic development authority authorized, Minn. Stat. § 469.091, 
subd. 1. 

 
Section 2-202 Composition; Compensation 

 
The economic development authority shall be composed of seven members. Authority members shall serve 
with compensation in the amount of $1.00 per year. 
 
(Code 1976, § 2.27(1)(A), (1)(E)) 

State law reference(s)—Economic development authority membership, compensation, etc., Minn. Stat. 
§ 469.095. 

Section 2-203 Officers And Meetings 
 

(a) The economic development authority shall elect a president, vice-president, treasurer, assistant treasurer 
and secretary annually. A member must not serve as president and vice-president at the same time. The 
other offices may be held by the same member. The offices of the secretary and assistant treasurer need 
not be held by a member. 

 
State law reference(s)—Similar provisions, Minn. Stat. § 469.096, subd. 2. 

(b) The economic development authority shall adopt rules and procedures not inconsistent with the 
provisions of this division or as provided in Minn. Stat. § 469.096, and as may be necessary for the proper 
execution and conduct of the business. 

(c) The economic development authority shall meet at least once a month. Special meetings may be called 
by the chairperson as needed. 

 
(Code 1976, § 2.27(2)) 

 
Section 2-204 Staff 

 
(a) The city administrator shall be designated as executive director of the economic development authority. 

(b) Subject to the approval of the city council and within limits set by the appropriations or other funds made 
Page 15Item 1. 015

https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-4_ECONOMIC_DEVELOPMENT_AUTHORITY
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-201_Established
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-202_Composition%3B_Compensation
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-203_Officers_And_Meetings
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-204_Staff
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-204_Staff
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-205_Functions
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-206_Limitations_Of_Power
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-201_Established
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-202_Composition%3B_Compensation
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-203_Officers_And_Meetings
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-204_Staff


available, the economic development authority may employ such staff, technicians and experts as may be 
deemed proper, and may incur such other expenses as may be necessary and proper for the conduct of 
its affairs. 

 
(Code 1976, § 2.27(3)) 

 
Section 2-205 Functions 

 
(a) Except as specifically limited by the provisions of this division, the economic development authority shall 

have the authority granted it pursuant to Minn. Stat. §§ 469.01—469.1081, or other law. 

(b) The economic development authority shall manage the Marshall Community Reinvestment Fund (the 
fund) which shall be used for purposes of economic development including, but not limited to, the 
acquisition of property, equity investments, working capital loans, equipment/tooling loans, inventory 
loans, and the like. 

(c) The economic development authority shall accept from the housing and redevelopment authority in and 
for the city such portions of the project area of Housing and Redevelopment Project No. 1 as deemed 
appropriate by the city council for purposes of assisting the fund and using authority powers to assist 
existing redevelopment project activities. 

(d) All administrative procedures including contract for services, purchases of supplies and financial 
transactions and duties shall be outlined in the bylaws of the economic development authority. 

(e) The authority may create and define the boundaries of economic development districts as authorized by 
Minn. Stat. §§ 469.090—469.1081. 

(f) The economic development authority may be a limited partner in a partnership whose purpose is 
consistent with the authority's purpose. 

(g) The economic development authority may issue general obligation bonds and revenue bonds when 
authorized by the city council and pledge as security for the bonds the full faith, credit and resources of 
the city or such revenues as may be generated by projects undertaken by the authority. 

(h) The economic development authority may cooperate with or act as agent for the federal or state 
government or a state public body, or an agency or instrumentality of a government or other public body 
to carry out the powers granted it by Minn. Stat. §§ 469.01—469.1081, or any other related federal, state 
or local law in the area of economic development district improvement. 

(i) The economic development authority may annually develop and present an economic development 
strategy to the city council for consideration and approval. 

(j) The economic development authority may serve in an advisory role to the city council for city policies and 
procedures for economic development and redevelopment activities of the city. 

(k) The economic development authority may study and analyze economic development and redevelopment 
needs in the city and ways to meet those needs. 

(l) The economic development authority may join an official, industrial, commercial or trade association, or 
other organization concerned with such purposes, hold receptions of officials who may contribute to 
advancing the city and its economic development, and carry out other appropriate public relations 
activities to promote the city and its economic development. 

(m) The economic development authority may carry out the law on economic development districts to 
develop and improve the lands in an economic development district to make it suitable and available for 
economic development and redevelopment uses and purposes. In general, with respect to an economic 
development district, the authority may use all of the powers given an economic development authority 
by law. 

Page 16Item 1. 016

https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-205_Functions


(n) The economic development authority shall have such powers and duties which may be lawfully assigned 
to it by the city council. 

 
(Code 1976, § 2.27(4)) 

 
State law reference(s)—Powers of economic development authority generally, Minn. Stat. § 469.101 et seq. 

 
Section 2-206 Limitations Of Power 

 
(a) Except when previously pledged by the economic development authority, the city council may, by 

resolution, require the authority to transfer any portion of the reserves generated by activities of the 
authority that the city council determines are not necessary for the successful operation of the authority, 
to the debt service funds of the city, to be used solely to reduce tax levies for bonded indebtedness of the 
city. 

(b) The sale of all bonds or obligations issued by the economic development authority shall be approved by 
the city council before issuance. 

(c) The economic development authority shall follow the budget process for city departments as provided by 
the city and as implemented by the city council and mayor. 

(d) All official actions of the economic development authority must be consistent with the adopted 
comprehensive plan of the city and any official controls implementing the comprehensive plan. 

(e) The economic development authority shall submit its administrative structure and management 

practices to the city council for approval. 
 
(Code 1976, § 2.27(5)) 

State law reference(s)—Authority to so provide, Minn. Stat. § 469.092. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 17Item 1. 017

https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-206_Limitations_Of_Power


DIVISION 2-VI-5 HOSPITAL BOARD 
Section 2-221 Established 
Section 2-222 Composition; Appointments 
Section 2-223 Powers 
Section 2-224 Control And Management 
Section 2-225 Hospital Fund 
Section 2-226 Rules And Regulations Section 
2-227 Annual Report 

 

State law reference(s)—Municipal hospitals, Minn. Stat. § 447.05 et seq. 
 
Section 2-221 Established 

 
A hospital board is hereby established. (Code 

1976, § 2.21) 

Section 2-222 Composition; Appointments 
 
The hospital board shall be comprised of seven members, each of whom shall be a resident of the city, and none 
of whom shall be an employee of the hospital. Members shall be appointed for terms of five years each. One 
member may be the mayor or a member of the council. It is permissible for the council to appoint up to one 
person at a time to serve on the board that is on the medical staff of the hospital. If such specific appointment is 
made, it shall not increase the seven person board. 

(Code 1976, § 2.21) 
 
Section 2-223 Powers 

 
The hospital board shall have the power and authority to appoint and employ a secretary of such board, who 
shall qualify as stated in this section, and upon such qualification shall be the secretary of the board. Such 
secretary shall keep an accurate record in books kept by him for that purpose, of all the proceedings and business 
transactions of the board, and he is empowered and it is hereby made his duty, to collect all dues and charges 
becoming due from patients for hospitalization and care received in such hospital and charges for the use of the 
equipment and facilities of such hospital, and pay the same into the city treasury. He shall make a detailed 
statement of the same at the regular meeting of the board, which shall be held on the third Monday of each 
month. The board shall be required to furnish a corporate bond running to the city, in an amount to be fixed by 
the board, that he shall faithfully perform all the duties of his office as required of him by law. Such bond shall be 
approved by the board and filed with the city clerk/finance director. The compensation of the secretary shall be 
in such sum as may be determined by the board, but the compensation shall first be approved by the council. The 
board shall have the power to revoke such appointment and discharge such secretary at any time in its discretion, 
and thereupon to appoint another secretary. 

(Code 1976, § 2.21(1)) 

Section 2-224 Control And Management 

Page 18Item 1. 018



The hospital board shall have the full and exclusive control and management of the Weiner Memorial Medical 
Center d/b/a Avera Marshall Regional Medical Center, and all hospital grounds and appurtenances thereto, and 
all apparatus, equipment and material of every nature used in the operation of such hospital. Whenever the word 
"hospital" is used in this division, it shall include such hospital, and all other hospitals, or branches of hospitals, 
including nursing homes, or branches of nursing homes, operated by the city. 

 
(a) The hospital board has the authority and legal capacity to do the following: 

(1) Enter shared service and other cooperative ventures; 

(2) Enter partnerships; 

(3) Incorporate other corporations; and 

(4) Own shares of stock in business corporations. 

Entering into any of the business arrangements as set forth above, except for the investment in stocks 
through normal course of business by said hospital board, shall first require consent of the council 
thereto and that any such contracts or business agreements entered shall be subject to and conform with 
applicable state law. 

(b) The hospital board has the authority and legal capacity to do the following: 

(1) Join or sponsor membership in organizations intended to benefit the hospital or hospitals in 
general; 

(2) Have members of its governing authority or its officers or administrators serve as directors, 
officers or employees of the ventures, associations or corporations; 

(3) Offer, directly or indirectly, products and services of the hospital, organization, association, 
partnership or corporation to the general public; and 

(4) Expend funds, including public funds in any form or devote the resources of the hospital or 
hospital district to recruit or retain physicians whose services are necessary or desirable for 
meeting the healthcare needs of the population, and for successful performance of the hospital 
or hospital district's public purpose of the promotion of health. Allowable uses of funds and 
resources include the retirement of medical education debt, payment of one time amounts in 
consideration services rendered or to be rendered, payment of recruitment expenses, payment 
of moving expenses and the provision of other financial assistance necessary for the recruitment 
and retention of physicians, provided that the expenditures in whatever form are reasonable 
under the facts and circumstances of the situation. 

Prior council consent is not required for authority and capacity concerning activities set forth in Sec. 2-
224(b). 

 
(Code 1976, § 2.21(3); Ord. No. 551, § 1—3, 6-5-06) 

 
Section 2-225 Hospital Fund 

 
All monies received and collected from the operation of said hospital, except those funds collected from a 
business venture defined in section 2-224(a), shall be deposited and credited to a special fund to be known as the 
hospital fund. The board shall have the exclusive control of said hospital fund and it shall be their duty to see that 
all fees and charges becoming due to said hospital for its services are properly collected and credited to said fund; 
and said monies shall be paid out of said fund only upon properly approved bills presented to the board and duly 
audited and allowed by them, and shall be paid out of said hospital fund by a check signed by the secretary of the 
board and countersigned by the city clerk. The board shall out of said hospital fund purchase all necessary 
supplies and material and employ a 

Page 19Item 1. 019



suitable director of nursing and such other employees as shall be necessary for the proper management, 
operation and conduct of said hospital, including all improvements and additions; provided, however, that the 
board shall not make any contracts involving any expenditures of more than 
$150,000.00 for any single item of purchase, addition or improvement without first obtaining the consent of the 
council thereto and that any such contracts shall be subject to and conform with the applicable state law. 

(Code 1976, § 2.21(2); Ord. No. 432, § 1, 3-6-2000; Ord. No. 537 2nd series, § 1, 10-17-2005; Ord. No. 
551, § 4, 6-5-06) 

 
Section 2-226 Rules And Regulations 

 
The hospital board shall adopt all necessary rules and regulations for their own guidance and for the proper 
management and operation of such hospital, for the admission of patients thereto, and shall formulate a 
schedule of charges to be made for all hospital services to be rendered by such hospital, all of which shall be 
certified to the council as soon as adopted. 

 
(Code 1976, § 2.21(4)) 

 
Section 2-227 Annual Report 

 
The hospital board shall make, within five months of the end of the preceding fiscal year, an annual report to the 
council regarding the condition of their trust, showing the various sums of money received, and how the money 
has been expended and for what purposes, together with such other information which they may deem of 
general interest or which the council may request, and shall likewise, make monthly reports of their trust. 

(Code 1976, § 2.21(5); Ord. No. 551, § 5, 6-5-06) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20Item 1. 020



DIVISION 2-VI-6 DIVERSITY, EQUITY, AND INCLUSION COMMISSION 
Section 2-246 Established; Composition; Appointments; Qualifications Section 
2-247 Duties 

 

Section 2-246 Established; Composition; Appointments; Qualifications 
 

(a) The diversity, equity, and inclusion commission is hereby established for the purpose of securing for all 
residents equitable opportunity in employment, housing, public accommodations, public services and 
education and full participation in the affairs of this community, and advising the council on long range 
programs to improve community relations. Appointments shall be made, effective June 1, for three-year 
staggered terms. 

(b) The following members will be appointed by the city council. 

(1) One member of the Marshall City Council. 

(2) Eight at-large members. 
 

(c) The city council shall authorize the diversity, equity, and inclusion commission to designate 
representatives from organizations to a standing position on the commission as written in its bylaws. 

(d) Members of the diversity, equity, and inclusion commission shall be appointed with due regard to their 
fitness for the efficient dispatch of the functions, powers and duties vested in and imposed upon the 
commission. 

(Code 1976, § 2.26(1); Ord. No. 21-001, 1-26-2021) 

Section 2-247 Duties 

 
In fulfillment of its purpose, the diversity, equity, and inclusion commission's duties and responsibilities shall be 
to: 

 
(a) Adopt bylaws and rules for the conduct of its affairs including the election, assumption of duties and 

definition of responsibilities of officers and committees. 

(b) Enlist the cooperation of agencies, organizations and individuals in the community in an active program 
directed to create equal opportunity and eliminate discrimination and inequities. 

(c) Formulate a program for the city to give increased effectiveness and direction to the work of all 
individuals and agencies addressing themselves to planning, policy making and educational programming 
in the area of, diversity, equity, and inclusion. 

(d) Guide the mayor, the council and other agencies of the government of diversity, equity, and inclusion 
issues. Act in an authoritative capacity with respect to planning or operation of any city department on 
issues of diversity, equity, and inclusion and recommend the adoption of such specific policies or actions 
as are needed to provide for full equitable opportunities in the community. 

(e) Provide for the commission's assumption of leadership in recognizing and resolving potential problem 
areas in the community. 

 
(Code 1976, § 2.26(2); Ord. No. 21-001, 1-26-2021) 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 21Item 1. 021

https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-6_HUMAN_RIGHTS_COMMISSION
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-246_Established%3B_Composition%3B_Appointments%3B_Qualifications
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-247_Duties
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-247_Duties
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-246_Established%3B_Composition%3B_Appointments%3B_Qualifications
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-247_Duties


DIVISION 2-VI-7 LIBRARY BOARD 
Section 2-266 Established 
Section 2-267 Composition; Appointments 
Section 2-268 Compensation 
Section 2-269 Duties 
Section 2-270 Title To Property; Free Use 
Section 2-271 Annual Report 
Section 2-272 Membership 

 

Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 690, adopted September 9, 2014, replaced div. 7, §§ 2-266—2-271, with a new div. 7, 
to read as set out herein. Former div. 7 pertained to similar subject matter and was derived from Code 1976, § 
2.22. 

 
Section 2-266 Established 

A library board is hereby established. (Ord. 

No. 690, 9-9-2014) 

Section 2-267 Composition; Appointments 
 

(a) The library board shall be composed of nine members. 

(b) Members shall be appointed for three-year staggered terms except that any person appointed to fill a 
vacancy created by a member's failure to complete his/her term shall be appointed for the remainder 
of such term. Upon the expiration of the term of office a member shall be considered to be serving until 
a successor is appointed. 

(c) So long as the library continues to be a member of a regional public library system and the county 
continues to participate in a regional library system, the composition of the library board shall be as 
follows: 

 
One member shall be a county commissioner. 

 
Two members shall be residents of the county residing outside of the city and shall be appointed by the 
board of county commissioners. 

 
One member shall be a city councilmember. 

 
Five members shall be residents of the city and shall be appointed by the mayor with city council approval. 

(d) If the library ceases to be a member of a regional library system or if the county ceases to participate in a 
regional library system; the composition of the library board shall be as follows: 

 
One member shall be a city councilmember. 

 
Six members shall be residents of the city and shall be appointed by the mayor with city council approval. 

 
(Ord. No. 690, 9-9-2014) 

 
Section 2-268 Compensation 

 
Members shall serve without compensation. 

Page 22Item 1. 022

https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-7_LIBRARY_BOARD
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-266_Established
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-267_Composition%3B_Appointments
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-268_Compensation
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-269_Duties
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-270_Title_To_Property%3B_Free_Use
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-271_Annual_Report
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-272_Membership
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-266_Established
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-267_Composition%3B_Appointments
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-268_Compensation


(Ord. No. 690, 9-9-2014) 

Section 2-269 Duties 
 
The library board shall adopt bylaws and regulations for the government of the library and for the conduct of its 
business as may be expedient and conformable to law. It shall have exclusive control of the expenditure of all 
money collected for or placed to the credit of the library fund, of interest earned on all money collected for or 
placed to the credit of the library fund, of the construction of library buildings, and of the grounds, rooms, and 
buildings provided for library purposes. All money received for the library shall be paid into the city treasury, 
credited to the library fund, kept separate from other money of the city, and paid out only upon approval by the 
board. The library board may lease rooms for library use. The library board shall appoint a qualified library 
director and other staff as necessary, establish the compensation of employees, and remove any of them for 
cause. With the approval of the council, the library board may purchase grounds and erect a library building 
thereon. 

(Ord. No. 690, 9-9-2014) 
 
Section 2-270 Title To Property; Free Use 

 
All property given, granted, conveyed, donated, devised, or bequeathed to, or otherwise acquired by the city for 
a public library shall vest in, and be held in the name of the city and any conveyance, grant, donation, devise, 
bequest, or gift made to, or in the name of the library or library board shall be deemed to have been made 
directly to the city to be used as provided in section 2-269. Every public library established under Minn. Stat. §§ 
134.07 to 134.15 shall be forever free to the use of the inhabitants of the city or county subject to reasonable 
regulations the library board may adopt. 

(Ord. No. 690, 9-9-2014) 

Section 2-271 Annual Report 
 
As soon as practicable following the end of the fiscal year the library board shall report to the governing body of 
the city all amounts received during the preceding year and the sources thereof, the amounts expended and for 
what purposes, the number of library materials on hand, the number purchased and loaned, and such other 
information as it deems advisable. No later than April 1 of each year the library board shall file this information 
with the department of education on forms supplied by the department. 

(Ord. No. 690, 9-9-2014) 
 
Section 2-272 Membership 

 
Any decision on the library's membership in a regional library system shall be made by the city council. (Ord. No. 

690, 9-9-2014) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23Item 1. 023

https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-269_Duties
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-270_Title_To_Property%3B_Free_Use
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-271_Annual_Report
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-272_Membership


DIVISION 2-VI-8 PLANNING COMMISSION 
Section 2-286 Established 
Section 2-287 Composition; Appointments; Election Of Officers 
Section 2-288 Powers And Duties 
Section 2-289 Veto Power Of Council Section 
2-290 Debt 
Section 2-291 Compensation 

 

Cross reference(s)—Subdivisions, ch. 66; zoning, ch. 86. 
 
Section 2-286 Established 

 
A planning commission is hereby established. 

 
(Code 1976, § 2.24; Ord. No. 418 2nd series, § 1(2.24), 8-16-1999) 

 
State law reference(s)—Planning commissions, Minn. Stat. § 462.354, subd. 1(1). 

 
Section 2-287 Composition; Appointments; Election Of Officers 

 
The planning commission shall be composed of seven members. Planning commission members shall be 
appointed for three-year staggered terms. None of such members shall hold any other office or position in the 
city government. The commission shall elect its chairperson and vice-chairperson from among the appointed 
members. 

(Code 1976, § 2.24; Ord. No. 418 2nd series, § 1(2.24), 8-16-1999) 

Section 2-288 Powers And Duties 
 

(a) The planning commission shall have power and shall be required to: 

(1) Develop and submit to the council for adoption a master plan for the physical development of 
the city, and from time to time offer amendments, extensions and additions to such master plan 
which shall show the commission's recommendations for the development of city territory. Such 
plan may include, among other things: 

a. The general location, character and extent of streets, bridges, parks, waterways, 

and other public ways, grounds and spaces; 

b. The general location of public buildings and other public property; 

c. The general location and extent of public utilities, whether publicly or privately owned; 

d. Contemplated changes in the removal, relocation, widening, vacation or abandonment of 
existing or future public ways, grounds, spaces, buildings, property or utilities; and 

e. Maps, plats, charts, and descriptive and explanatory matter detailing an overall plan for 
future development. 

The adoption of such proposed plan or part, amendment or extension thereof shall be by 
resolution of such planning commission carried by the affirmative votes of not less than a 
majority of all members, but before the adoption of such plan, or any part or modification or 
extension thereof, the commission shall hold at least one public hearing on the proposed action. 
Upon the adoption an attested copy of such plan or amendment or extension thereof shall be Page 24Item 1. 024

https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-8_PLANNING_COMMISSION
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-286_Established
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-287_Composition%3B_Appointments%3B_Election_Of_Officers
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-288_Powers_And_Duties
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-289_Veto_Power_Of_Council
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-290_Debt
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-290_Debt
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-291_Compensation
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-286_Established
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-287_Composition%3B_Appointments%3B_Election_Of_Officers
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-288_Powers_And_Duties


certified to the council. 

(2) Draft for the council an official map and zoning plans of the city and recommend or disapprove 
proposed changes in such map or plans. 

(3) Promote public interest in and understanding of the master plan, and of planning, zoning and 
physical development of the city. 

(4) Meet not less than once each month and keep a public record of its resolutions, findings and 
determinations. 

 
(b) The planning commission shall have power to: 

(1) Require information which shall be furnished within a reasonable time from the other 
departments of the city government in relation to its work. 

(2) In the performance of its functions enter upon any land and make examinations and surveys and 
place and maintain necessary monuments and marks thereon. 

(3) Make recommendations as to the constructions, extension or authorization in the city of any 
street, park or other public way, ground or space, or as to the acquisition by the city of any real 
property, or as to the construction, extension or authorization by the city of any public building, 
with full information as to the type, specifications, location and extent thereof. The widening, 
narrowing, relocation, vacation, or change in the use of any street, public way or ground, may 
also be subject to recommendations by the planning commission to the council. 

 

(Code 1976, § 2.24(1), (2)) 
 
Section 2-289 Veto Power Of Council 

Any action of the planning commission may be overruled on any issue by a majority vote of the council. (Code 

1976, § 2.24(6)) 

Section 2-290 Debt 
 
The council shall, in its budget, make provision for and appropriate such sum of money as may be necessary 
to defray the expense of the official activities and work of the planning commission. 

(Code 1976, § 2.25(5)) 

Section 2-291 Compensation 

Planning commission members shall serve without compensation. (Code 

1976, § 2.25(5)) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 25Item 1. 025

https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-289_Veto_Power_Of_Council
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-290_Debt
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-291_Compensation


DIVISION 2-VI-9 POLICE ADVISORY BOARD 
Section 2-306 Establishment And Composition Section 2-
307 Function And Duties 
Section 2-308 Organization, Meetings 

 

Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 630 2nd series, § 1, adopted January 25, 2011, amended division 9 in its entirety to 
read as herein set out. Formerly, division 9, § 2-306, pertained to the police civil service commission and derived 
from the Code of 1976, § 2.23(1). 

 
Section 2-306 Establishment And Composition 

 
A police advisory board is hereby established composed of three voting members who are qualified electors of 
the city and who shall serve staggered three-year terms. A member of the city council shall be an advisory 
member of the police advisory board as appointed by the mayor, but shall not be entitled to vote. On the last 
business day in May in each year, a board member or members shall be appointed for a term or terms of three 
years to succeed the board member of members whose term or terms then expire. Vacancies on the police 
advisory board shall be filled by appointment by the mayor with the approval of the council, as provided in the 
Charter. 

(Ord. No. 630 2nd series, § 1, 1-25-2011) 

Section 2-307 Function And Duties 

 
The board shall be an advisory body to the council on matters relating to the operation and organization of the 
police department. The board shall serve as a citizen liaison to the council and department. The board shall assist 
and advise the director of public safety and the city administrator with the selection and promotion of licensed 
peace officers. The procedure and policies related to the selection and promotion process shall be established in 
the administrative code as prescribed in the City Charter. The board may participate with the director of public 
safety in the review and recommendation of capital expense items and may study policy issues for 
recommendations as requested by the council, the city administrator and the director of public safety. 

(Ord. No. 630 2nd series, § 1, 1-25-2011) 
 
Section 2-308 Organization, Meetings 

 
The board shall, at its first meeting in each calendar year, elect from among its members a chairperson, a vice-
chairperson, a secretary and such other officers as it may determine. The board shall hold at least one regular 
meeting annually and shall keep minutes of its meetings, a copy of which minutes shall be furnished to the 
council as soon as reasonably possible after the date of the meeting. 

(Ord. No. 630 2nd series, § 1, 1-25-2011) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26Item 1. 026

https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-9_POLICE_ADVISORY_BOARD
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-306_Establishment_And_Composition
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-307_Function_And_Duties
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-307_Function_And_Duties
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-308_Organization%2C_Meetings
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-306_Establishment_And_Composition
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-307_Function_And_Duties
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-308_Organization%2C_Meetings


DIVISION 2-VI-10 PUBLIC HOUSING COMMISSION 
Section 2-321 Established 
Section 2-322 Composition; Terms; Appointments And Qualifications Section 
2-323 Powers And Duties 

Section 2-324 Powers And Duties Of Executive Director 

 

Section 2-321 Established 

The public housing commission is hereby established. (Code 

1976, § 2.31) 

Section 2-322 Composition; Terms; Appointments And Qualifications 
 
The public housing commission shall be composed of five members. The term of any member shall be five years. 
Members of the public housing commission shall be appointed with due regard to their fitness for the efficient 
dispatch of the functions, powers and duties vested in and imposed upon the commission. One of the five 
members shall be an eligible resident. An eligible resident is a person: (1) who is directly assisted by a public 
housing agency; (2) whose name appears on the lease; and (3) is 18 years of age or older. The appointing 
authority shall actively seek for a period of 30 days, an eligible resident for appointment to the commission. If at 
the end of 30 days, an eligible resident is not available, the appointing authority shall be able to appoint a person 
who is not an eligible resident. 

(Code 1976, § 2.31(1), (2), (4); Ord. No. 436, § 1, 7-17-2000) 
 
Section 2-323 Powers And Duties 

 
The powers and duties of the public housing commission shall be as follows: 

 
(a) To appoint and employ an executive director. 

(b) Adopt bylaws and rules for the conduct of its officers, including the election, assumption of duties, and 
definition of responsibilities of officers and committees. 

(c) Enlist the cooperation of agencies, organizations and individuals in the community in an active program 
directed to create equal opportunity and eliminate discrimination and inequalities in public housing. 

(d) Manage and develop appropriate public housing within the city. 

(e) Prepare and deliver to the city council annually a report on activities of the housing commission. 

 
(Code 1976, § 2.31(5); Ord. No. 436, § 1, 7-17-2000) 

 
Section 2-324 Powers And Duties Of Executive Director 

 
(a) The executive director shall have general supervision over the administration of the housing 

commission's officers and all employees of the commission. 

(b) The executive director shall establish and maintain representation between the housing commission and 
city staff, and other governmental agencies. 

 
(Code 1976, § 2.31(6); Ord. No. 436, § 1, 7-17-2000) 

 
 

Page 27Item 1. 027

https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-10_PUBLIC_HOUSING_COMMISSION
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-321_Established
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-322_Composition%3B_Terms%3B_Appointments_And_Qualifications
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-323_Powers_And_Duties
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-323_Powers_And_Duties
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-324_Powers_And_Duties_Of_Executive_Director
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-321_Established
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-322_Composition%3B_Terms%3B_Appointments_And_Qualifications
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-323_Powers_And_Duties
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-324_Powers_And_Duties_Of_Executive_Director


DIVISION 2-VI-11 SENIOR CITIZENS CENTER COMMISSION 
Section 2-341 Established 
Section 2-342 Composition; Terms; Qualifications Section 
2-343 Function 
Section 2-344 Powers And Duties 

 

Section 2-341 Established 

The senior citizens center commission is hereby established. (Code 

1976, § 2.29) 

Section 2-342 Composition; Terms; Qualifications 
 
The senior citizens center commission shall be composed of seven members. The term of any member shall be 
three years. Members of the commission shall be appointed with due regard to their fitness for the efficient 
dispatch of the functions, powers and duties vested in and imposed upon the commission. The council shall 
appoint all members to such commission. Two members shall be appointed from the Marshall Area Senior 
Citizens, Inc., one member shall be appointed from the city council, and four members shall be appointed from 
the citizens of the city. 

(Code 1976, § 2.29(1), (2), (4); Ord. No. 496 2nd series, § 1, 7-7-2003) 
 
Section 2-343 Function 

 
The function of the senior citizens center commission shall be to manage, operate and maintain the city's senior 
citizens center. 

 
(Code 1976, § 2.29(5)) 

 
Section 2-344 Powers And Duties 

 
The powers and duties of the senior citizens center commission shall be as follows: 

 
(a) Develop and present to the city council their report with recommendation on the city's senior citizens 

center budget. 

(b) Appoint members of their commission to serve on other commissions of the city. 

(c) Adopt all necessary rules and regulations for their own guidance and for the proper management and 
operation of such senior citizens center. 

(d) Make on or before December 31, of each year, annual report to the council regarding the operation of 
the senior citizens center, and how the funds of the city were spent during such year. 

(e) The senior citizens center commission shall have the authority to enter into contracts only after they 
have been approved by the city council. 

(f) The commission shall have the authority to employ such persons as are necessary to carry out their 
function, within their budgetary limitations. 

 
(Code 1976, § 2.29(6)) 

 
 
 

Page 28Item 1. 028

https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-11_SENIOR_CITIZENS_CENTER_COMMISSION
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-341_Established
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-342_Composition%3B_Terms%3B_Qualifications
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-343_Function
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-343_Function
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-344_Powers_And_Duties
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-341_Established
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-342_Composition%3B_Terms%3B_Qualifications
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-343_Function
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-344_Powers_And_Duties


DIVISION 2-VI-12 MINNESOTA EMERGENCY RESPONSE AND INDUSTRIAL TRAINING (MERIT) CENTER BOARD 
Section 2-361 Established 
Section 2-362 Composition; Terms; Qualifications. Section 
2-363 Purpose 
Section 2-364 Powers And Duties 

 

Section 2-361 Established 
 
The Minnesota Emergency Response and Industrial Training (MERIT) Center board is hereby established. 

(Ord. No. 521 2nd series, § 1, 11-15-2004; Ord. No. 743 2nd series, § 1, 10-22-2019) 

Section 2-362 Composition; Terms; Qualifications. 

 
(a) The MERIT center shall consist of no more than 18 members or less. 

 
The following shall be permanent members of the Board of Directors: 

(1) Director of Public Safety, City of Marshall, Minnesota. 

(2) One City Council member, City of Marshall, Minnesota as appointed by the mayor and confirmed 
by the city council. 

 
(b) The following organizations/groups may each appoint one member to the board: 

(1) Minnesota West Community and Technical College. 

(2) Minnesota State Fire Department Association—Region 13 (Southwest). 

(3) Minnesota State Fire Department Association—Region 9 (West Central). 

(4) Minnesota Municipal Utilities Association (MMUA). 

(5) Homeland Security and Emergency Management (HSEM) Region V. 

(6) Southwest Minnesota Emergency Medical Services Corporation. 

(7) Southwest Minnesota Chiefs of Police Association—Law Enforcement representative. 

The above-mentioned members will be appointed by their representative organization or association, for 
a period of time of that organization's or association's choosing. 

(c) The following members shall be appointed by the members of the MERIT board for a term of three 
years: 

(1) Two industrial representatives, one within the corporate municipal boundaries of the City of 
Marshall and one within the primary service area of the MERIT Center as described in article I, 
section 5. 

(2) One member from a gas or electric utility company or authority within the primary service area of 
the MERIT Center as described in article I, section 5. 

(3) One local National Guard Unit or other military representative within the primary service area of 
the MERIT Center as described in article I, section 5. 

(4) One Fire, emergency medical services or other related safety representative within the primary 
service area of the MERIT Center as described in article I, section 5. 

Members of this group may be re-appointed for two consecutive terms. 
 

Page 29Item 1. 029

https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=DIVISION_2-VI-12_MINNESOTA_EMERGENCY_RESPONSE_AND_INDUSTRIAL_TRAINING_(MERIT)_CENTER_BOARD
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-361_Established
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-362_Composition%3B_Terms%3B_Qualifications
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-363_Purpose
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-363_Purpose
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-364_Powers_And_Duties
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-361_Established
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-362_Composition%3B_Terms%3B_Qualifications


If any organization listed in section 2 above does not choose to appoint a member to the board, the 
remaining members may choose to leave the position vacant or may attempt to fill the position with at-
large member until such time that the organization may choose to appoint a member. Any member of 
the board mentioned in section 2, above may designate an alternate who will be eligible to vote during 
the absence of the official member. 

 
The following members will be appointed by the city council. 

(1) Four at-large members. The term of any member shall be three years from and after the January 
1 of the year of their respective appointments and shall expire each year on December 31. 

(2) No board member shall during the term of their membership, hold any other office or 
position in the city government. 

 

(Ord. No. 521 2nd series, § 1, 11-15-2004; Ord. No. 743 2nd series, § 1, 10-22-2019) 
 
Section 2-363 Purpose 

 
The purpose of the MERIT Center board shall be to advise the council regarding the management, operation and 
maintenance of the MERIT Center facility located at 1001 West Erie Road, Marshall, Minnesota, and to promote 
such facility to be the premiere emergency preparedness, response and industrial training center located in 
southwest Minnesota. 

 
(Ord. No. 521 2nd series, § 1, 11-15-2004; Ord. No. 743 2nd series, § 1, 10-22-2019) 

 
Section 2-364 Powers And Duties 
The powers and duties of the MERIT Center board shall be as follows: 

 
(a) To adopt bylaws and rules for the conduct of its officers, including election, assumption of duties and 

definition of responsibilities of all officers and committees. 

(b) To provide relevant, quality training and educational opportunities to public safety, governmental, 
industrial personnel and the general public. 

(c) To provide life-safety opportunities which encourage and inspire participation by professionals and the 
public in meeting the every changing cultural, social, educational and professional needs of the citizens of 
southwestern Minnesota and beyond and to promote safety and to enhance the quality of life. 

(d) To encourage volunteerism, individual initiative, team work and corrective management to achieve and 
maintain the highest level of community preparedness and safety. 

(e) To provide an educational environment with a minimum of barriers to all persons using the facility at the 
lowest cost of user and public while adequately funding facility operations. 

(f) To provide the opportunity for everyone with lifelong learning and development through providing 
credit, certificate and non-credit educational programs in community emergency preparedness, response 
and safety. 

(g) To promote public and private interaction, cooperation and partnerships in community emergency 
preparedness, response and safety. 

(h) The board shall make appropriate recommendations and appropriate reports to the city council, on at 
least an annual basis. The city council is the official governing body of the MERIT Center facility and shall 
have the authority to approve or disapprove recommendations from said board. 

 
(Ord. No. 521 2nd series, § 1, 11-15-2004; Ord. No. 743 2nd series, § 1, 10-22-2019) 

Page 30Item 1. 030

https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-363_Purpose
https://marshall-mn.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=Section_2-364_Powers_And_Duties


(Supp. No. 38) 

Page 1 of 
65 

 

PART II - CODE OF ORDINANCES 
Chapter 22 - BUSINESSES 

ARTICLE IV. MOBILE FOOD UNITS AND FOOD CARTS 

 

 

ARTICLE IV. MOBILE FOOD UNITS AND FOOD CARTS 

 
Sec. 22-91. Purpose. 

This article is designed to permit the reasonable use of mobile food units while preventing any adverse 
consequences to residents, businesses and public property. 

(Ord. No. 744 2nd series, § 1, 10-22-2019) 
 

Sec. 22-92. Definitions. 

The following words and terms when used for this license shall have the following meanings unless the 
context clearly indicates otherwise. 

Food cart. A food and beverage service establishment that is a non-motorized vehicle that is self-propelled 
by the operator. 

Mobile food unit. 

(1) A self-contained food service operation, located in a motorized, wheeled or towed vehicle, that is 
readily movable without disassembling and that is used to store, prepare, display, or serve food 
intended for individual portion service; or 

(2) A mobile food unit as defined in Minn. Stat. § 157.15, subd. 9. 

(Ord. No. 744 2nd series, § 1, 10-22-2019) 

 
Sec. 22-93. License requirement. 

(a) Type of license. An annual license allows mobile food unit or food cart operations in the city for any number 
of days over 21 days during any calendar year. A mobile food unit or food cart operating 21 days or less shall 
follow state regulations. No city license is necessary to operate for 21 days or less in any calendar year. No 
city license is necessary to operate if in conjunction with a permanent business within the City of Marshall as 
defined under Minn. Stat. ch. 157 or Minn. Stat. ch. 28A. 

(b) License fees. Fees for annual licenses are set forth in the city's fee schedule. 

(c) Application information requirements. An applicant must complete the application and provide all 
information to the city clerk whether a license is required or is not required. An application shall be filed, 
along with the required fee, with the city clerk. The applicant must be the owner of the mobile food unit or 
food cart. The application shall be made on a form supplied by the city and shall contain information 
requested by the city, including the following: 

(1) Name of the owner and operator, if different than the owner, of the mobile food unit or food cart and 
permanent and temporary home and business addresses; 

(2) A description of the nature of the business, the goods to be sold and the license plate number and 
description for any motorized or unmotorized vehicle to be used in conjunction with the activity; 

 
 

 
Marshall, Minnesota, Code of Ordinances Created: 2021-08-30 08:13:29 [EST] 

Page 31Item 2. 031



Created: 2021-08-30 08:13:29 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 38) 

Page 2 of 
65 

 

 

 
(3) A phone number and email address of the applicant, with a designation of a preferred mailing address 

for notices related to the license; 

(4) The name, address and contact information for the commissary with which the mobile food unit or 
food cart is affiliated, if applicable; 

(5) A certificate of insurance by an insurance company authorized to do business in the State of Minnesota 
shall meet the following requirements: 

a. Commercial general liability insurance, with a limit of not less than $1,000,000.00 each 
occurrence. If such insurance contains an annual aggregate limit, the annual aggregate limit shall 
be not less than $2,000,000.00; 

b. Workers compensation insurance (statutory limits) or evidence of exemption from state law; and, 

c. The city shall be endorsed as an additional insured on the certificate of insurance and the 
umbrella/excess insurance if the applicant intends to operate its mobile food unit or food cart on 
public property. 

(6) The certificate of insurance must contain a provision requiring notification be sent to the city should 
the policy be cancelled before its stated expiration date; 

(7) Written consent of each private property owner from which mobile food unit or food cart sales will be 
conducted; 

(8) If the mobile food unit or food cart will be located on city property or public right-of-way, a signed 
statement that the licensee shall hold harmless the city and its officers and employees, and shall 
indemnify the city and its officers and employees for any claims for damage to property or injury to 
persons which may be occasioned by any activity carried on under the terms of the license; 

(9) A copy of each related license or permit if applicable issued by the State of Minnesota required to 
operate a mobile food unit or food cart; and, 

(10) A copy of the applicant's state sales tax ID number. 

(Ord. No. 744 2nd series, § 1, 10-22-2019) 

State law reference(s)—Mobile food unit, Minn. Stat. 157.15, subd. 9. 

 
Sec. 22-94. Conditions of licensing. 

A mobile food unit or food cart may only operate if compliant with the following: 

(1) Locations. A mobile food unit or food cart may only operate in the locations set forth in this subpart. A 
mobile food unit or food cart may only operate in commercial and industrial zoning districts and must 
be placed on either concrete or bituminous surfaces unless otherwise approved by the city. 

a. In the public right away where parking is permitted. 

1. Written approval from the adjacent property owner must be obtained before approval of a 
license. 

b. On private property. 

1. With written consent of the private property owner. 

c. When operations occur on private residential property, mobile food unit or food cart sales may 
only be for catering purposes (such as a private graduation party or wedding) and may not be 
open for sales to the general public. 

Page 32Item 2. 032



Created: 2021-08-30 08:13:29 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 38) 

Page 3 of 
65 

 

 

 
d. A mobile food unit or food cart may only operate in a city park or on city property with the prior 

written approval of the city; additional permits may be required for such operations. 

(2) Performance standards. A mobile food unit or food cart licensee is subject to the following 
performance standards. 

a. Applicable license fee shall be paid. 

b. A mobile food unit or food cart shall be operated in strict compliance with the laws, rules and 
regulations of the United States, State of Minnesota and the City of Marshall. 

c. Wastewater may not be drained into city storm water drains. 

d. A mobile food unit or food cart shall provide and maintain at least one clearly designated waste 
container for customer use per each food cart or mobile food unit. The operator of a mobile food 
unit or food cart is responsible for daily removal of trash, litter, recycling and refuse. Public trash 
cans shall not be used to dispose of waste generated by the operation. The operator shall provide 
a garbage receptacle with a tight-fitting lid. The receptacle shall be easily accessible for customer 
use and located within five feet of the unit. 

e. If a mobile food unit must provide a power supply it shall be screened from public view and that 
complies with pertinent city noise regulations. 

f. A mobile food unit or food cart may operate between 7:00 a.m. and 10:30 p.m. and 10:30 p.m. to 
1:30 a.m. in designated downtown areas, and must not create any unnecessary noise, 
disturbances or disrupt public traffic or safety in any way. An exemption to hours may be 
authorized by city council on a per event basis. 

g. A mobile food unit or food cart shall be allowed to set up one hour prior to conducting food 
vending and shall exit from the site within one hour of the close of conducting business. 

g.1. A mobile food unit or food cart may remain on private property in commercial and 
industrial zoned districts after conducting business with permission from the 
property owner. 

h. A mobile food unit or food cart may have a maximum footprint of 300 square feet unless 
otherwise approved by the city. 

1. A mobile food unit or food cart may be restricted to operate only on private property if it 
exceeds a maximum footprint of 300 square feet. 

i. If a mobile food unit or food cart are operating in the public right-of-way, interactions between a 
mobile food unit or food cart and a consumer must take place between the mobile food unit or 
food cart and the curb away from traffic. 

j. Mobile food units cannot obstruct the movement of pedestrians or vehicles or pose a hazard to 
public safety. 

k. A mobile food unit or food cart must not occupy more than two parallel parking spots or no more 
than four diagonal/horizontal parking spots if operating within the public right-of-way. 

l. Operators must clean around their mobile food unit or food cart at the end of each day and the 
mobile food unit or food cart must be kept in good repair and have a neat appearance. 

m. A mobile food unit or food cart operator must be licensed by the Minnesota Department of 
Health and Proof of the Minnesota Department of Health licensing must be provided and posted 
on the mobile food unit or food cart. 

n. A mobile food unit or food cart must comply with any applicable fire department food truck 
requirements. 

Page 33Item 2. 033



Created: 2021-08-30 08:13:29 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 38) 

Page 4 of 
65 

 

 

o. An out of service mobile food unit or food cart stored within the city must comply with all 
applicable zoning ordinance requirements. 

Page 34Item 2. 034



Created: 2021-08-30 08:13:29 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 38) 

Page 5 of 
65 

 

 

 
p. A mobile food unit or food cart may operate on private property in any residential zoned districts 

for a "one-time" event for catering purposes only. 

q. A mobile food unit or food cart may not operate within 100 feet from the public entrance to any 
restaurant and/or any portion of a restaurant's outdoor dining area during that restaurant's 
hours of operation unless the licensee obtains written permission from the restaurant 
owner/manager. 

r. A mobile food unit or food cart may not operate in city-owned parking lots, except those parking 
lots adjacent to or inside a city park with the prior written approval of the city. 

(3) Non-transferable license. A mobile food unit or food cart license is non-transferable. Proof of all 
required licenses shall be displayed at all times in the mobile food unit or food cart. 

(4) Practices prohibited. It is unlawful for any person engaged in the business of a mobile food unit or food 
cart operation to do any of the following: 

a. Call attention to that licensee's business by crying out, blowing a horn, ringing a bell, loud music 
or by any loud or unusual noise; 

b. Fail to display proof of license and produce valid identification when requested; 

c. Leave a mobile food unit or food cart unattended or at an authorized location outside allowed 
hours of operation; 

d. Operate the mobile food unit or food cart in or on public sidewalks or trails; 

e. Allow a mobile food unit or food cart to remain on the property of another when asked to leave; 

f. Obstruct the ingress or egress from commercial buildings during the building hours of operation; 

g. Claim endorsements by the city; or 

h. Conduct business in any manner as to create a threat to the health, safety, and welfare of a 
specific individual or the general public. 

(Ord. No. 744 2nd series, § 1, 10-22-2019) 
 

Sec. 22-95. Suspension or revocation of a license. 

A license issued pursuant to this article may be suspended by the city if the licensee has violated the terms of 
this article, or is otherwise conducting business in such a manner as to constitute a breach of the peace, fraudulent 
conduct, or any other conduct that is prohibited by local, state or federal laws or regulations. Falsification of 
information required for a license is also grounds for denial, suspension or revocation of a license. The license shall 
be automatically revoked if the licensee does not file an appeal pursuant to this section. When taking action on any 
license issued under this section, the city shall provide the licensee with verbal or written notice of the violation. 
The notice shall inform the licensee of its right to be heard before the city council. The notice shall also inform the 
licensee that the license shall be automatically revoked if no appeal is filed within 21 days of the date of the notice 
by the city. Verbal notice shall be confirmed within five days by a mailed written notice to the licensee. The city 
council shall not conduct a hearing on a suspension or revocation unless a request is made by the applicant for an 
appeal prior to the next city council meeting. No city council resolution or other notice calling for a hearing shall be 
required. 

(Ord. No. 744 2nd series, § 1, 10-22-2019) 

Page 35Item 2. 035



Created: 2021-08-30 08:13:29 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 38) 

Page 6 of 
65 

 

 

 

 

Secs. 22-96—22-110. Reserved. 

Page 36Item 2. 036



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, April 12, 2022 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider Amendments to Chapter 22, Article 22-IV Mobile Food Units and Food Carts 

Background 

Information: 

The Legislative and Ordinance Committee asked staff to for an amendment to the current 

Mobile Food Units and Food Carts Ordinance. This proposed amendment will allow license 

holders to remain on private property after business has concluded. 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

 

Recommendations: That the Legislative and Ordinance Committee approve the amendment to Chapter 22, Article 

22-IV Mobile Food Units and Food Carts. 

 

Page 37Item 2. 037



038



039



040



041



042



043



044



045



046



047



048



049



050



051



052



053


	Top
	Item 1.	Consider Approval of the Minutes for the March 1, 2022.
	2022_03_01 Minutes1

	Item 1.	Consider Amendments to Article 2-VI
	Agenda Memo
	Board, Commission and Authority Ordinance Reivew

	Item 2.	Consider Amendments to Chapter 22, Article 22-IV Mobile Food Units and Food Carts
	MOBILE_FOOD_UNITS_AND_FOOD_CARTS_AMENDMENT
	Agenda Memo

	Bottom



